
ZONING HEARING BOARD MEETING AGENDA 
Tuesday, February 13, 2024 at 7:00pm | Borough Council Chambers 

I. Convene Meeting

II. Review and Approve Agenda

III. Minutes

A. Review and approve September 27, 2023 meeting minutes -
B. Review and approve January 24, 2024 meeting minutes

IV. Case # ZHB-230006 

Applicant Gettysgolf, LLC 

Properties Affected 533 Steinwehr Avenue (Tax Parcel ID #16015-0013---000) 

Applicant’s Request The applicants seek a Special Exception for a Outdoor 
commercial recreation or entertainment activity in the TC, 
Tourism Commercial District as provided in § 27-903(B). 

V. Additional Business

A. 2023 Annual Report Draft

VI. Adjourn

1



ZONING HEARING BOARD MEETING MINUTES 
Wednesday, September 27, 2023 at 7:00pm | Borough Council Chambers 

Please refer to the Transcript of Testimony of the hearing held on Wednesday, September 27, 2023 at the Borough 
municipal building, 59 E. High Street, Gettysburg Pennsylvania for a verbatim record of the proceedings. 

Call to Order:  The meeting of the Gettysburg Borough Zoning Hearing Board was called to order at 7:00 p.m. by 
Chair Rodger Goodacre. 

Members Present:   Rodger Goodacre, John Butterfield, Darren Glass, Darlene Brown, and Michael Birkner 

Staff Members:   Carly Marshall, Planning Director; Matthew Teeter, Zoning Hearing Board Solicitor, Corrie 

Ondrazek Stenographer, Peter Griffioen, Code Compliance Officer; Paige Stewart, Planning Intern. 

Members of the Public:  Sue Cipperly, 314 N. Stratton St.; Martin Bagley, 48 South St.; John Kovaleski, 42 South 

St.; Michael and Christina Villanti, 44 South St.; Kimberly Mayers, 55 South St.; M&A Miner, 322 Gettys St.; Kurt 

Kramer, 12 Wade Ave.; Wayne Mayers, 55 South St.; Mike Helm, 52 South St. and John Wilson, 135 North George 

Street York, PA. 

Review and Approve Minutes: Darlene Brown made a motion to accept the minutes for April 26, 2023, June 

28, 2023, and July 26, 2023 as presented.  John Butterfield provided a second, and the motion carried 

unanimously. 

ZHB-230004 Gettysburg Station Special Exception and Variance Requests: 

John Butterfield read the legal notice for the hearing for the record. 

Attorney Teeter introduced for the record Board Exhibit 1- proof of publication of legal notice, letter dated 

September 7, 2023 to the applicants with notice of the hearing, notice that was posted to the property with 

notification of the hearing, signed list of mailed notices sent to 6 adjacent property owners on September 20, 

2023.  Attorney Teeter provided a pre-hearing brief explaining the purview and procedures for the Zoning 

Hearing Board for the purpose of deliberating the Special Exception and Zoning Variance applications. 

The Villanti’s, owners of 44 South Street presented their request to the Zoning Hearing Board for Variance from 

Sections 27-502, 27-503, and 27-50 9to operate a vacation rental at the property.   

Carly Marshall, Zoning Officer, provided the Planning Commission recommendations. 

2



Cross examination between members of the public occurred with John Kovaleski asking about the location of 

the property and financial hardship. Mike Helm asked the applicants about the length of time their son would be 

attending Gettysburg College, identified as two years. Kimberly Mayers asked about how the applicant had 

researched the borough and its laws, with the applicant indicating that they relied upon their real estate brokers 

involved in the sale. 

Wayne Mayers – 55 South Street – encouraged ZHB to deny variance and to encourage the Borough with 

regulating Short term rentals.  Prior to the regulation of STR’s we had a short term rental on the street and at 

that location. Mayers indicated that the house has since been bought by a couple that works and owns in the 

Borough.  Mayers expressed that the overlay is working, and we have people in those houses all the time and all 

year long..  A lot was spoken about affordable housing, but there is also the affordability at settlement time.  

There are all these bidding wars that happen when a house goes to sale and people that want to buy the home 

can’t compete with people wanting to use them for vacation rentals, and it prices out the average Joe that is 

looking to buy a house to live in. 

Mike Helm 52 South Street – Agreed with Wayne that we really are against the variance.  Helm indicated that the 

investment that we have all make on our houses on South Street, it is not transient in nature, and that people 

live in the neighborhood and the variances would dilute that. Mike Bagley stated the use of structures as being 

community focused. 

John Kovaleski 42 South St  provided he knew Mike and Christine and Mike and John had contact about their 

rental and that he was concerned with a hotel situation occurring. 

Cross examination by Solicitor Wilson occurred with witnesses Bagley, Mayers, Kovaleski. Upon completion 

Rodger Goodacre opened public comment. 

Mary Miner – 322 Gettys Street, indicated that she had lived there for 15 years form New York, and that she was 

not delighted with Airbnb’s.  

Kurt Kramer 12 Wade Avenue –strongly urged the Board to reject the application, and that he lived in a zone 

that is mixed zoning and I am surrounded now by Airbnb’s.  The owners are lovely people, but they aren’t the 

people that are there.  Kramer indicated that people parking on his grass, littering, and making noise at 

midnight.  It was his opinion that Gettysburg doesn’t need another Airbnb.  This is a classic case of buyer 

beware. 

3



 

 

Michael Birkner moved , Darren Glass provided a second and the Board voted unanimously to convene to 

executive session at 9:06 PM. 

 

 Mr. Goodacre called executive session to a close and reconvened the hearing at 9:20 PM 

 

Darren Glass moved to deny the request based on the fact that the criteria for granting a variance had not been 

met. Darlene Brown provided a second. The motion passed unanimously. 

 

Mr. Birkner explained to the applicant that while the applicant does seem to have a legitimate gripe with their 

realtor.  We are delighted that you love Gettysburg, that your son loves Gettysburg, and that the owners have a 

commitment to the community. 

 

Additional Business: None. 

 

Adjournment . Rodger Goodacre then asked for a motion to adjourn the meeting with Micheal Birkner making 

the motion to adjourn,  seconded by Darren Glass. The motion passed unanimously, and the meeting was 

adjourned at 9:25 p.m. 

 

 
 

4



 

 

 

 

 

ZONING HEARING BOARD MEETING MINUTES 
Wednesday, January 24, 2024 at 7:00 pm | Borough Council Chambers 

 
Call to Order: The meeting of the Gettysburg Borough Zoning Hearing Board was called to order at 7:04 
p.m. by Zoning Hearing Board Chair Rodger Goodacre. 
 
Members Present: Rodger Goodacre, John Butterfield, Michael Birkner, Darlene Brown, and Darren 
Glass. 
 
Members Absent: None 
 
Staff Members: Corrie Ondrizek, Court Reporter, John Whitmore, AICP, Director of Planning, Zoning, and 
Code Enforcement and Matthew Teeter, Zoning hearing Board Solicitor. 
 
Members of the Public: Gary Shaffer. 
 
Introductions and Previous Meeting Minutes: 
 
Rodger Goodacre began introductions of Zoning Hearing Board members and borough staff. Upon 
completion of introductions, Rodger Goodacre asked for modifications to the presented January 10, 2024 
reorganization meeting minutes. Matthew Teeter identified a correction to the minutes regarding prior 
2023 minutes and responsibility for investigation of those materials. After discussion regarding 2023 
meeting minutes, Rodger Goodacre provided the addition of the material discussion regarding the vacant 
Zoning Hearing Board alternate member position and the Board’s desire to have that position filled. 
 
Rodger Goodacre then asked for a vote to approve the minutes as amended. Darren Glass made a motion 
to approve as amended, with Michael Birkner providing the second. The motion carried 5-0. 
 
ZHB-230005 / 202 Carlisle Street / Goony 45, LLC: 
 
Following approval of the January 10, 2024 meeting minutes, the Chair began the public hearing portion of 
the meeting regarding application ZHB-230005 an application for special exception and related variances 
to permit a Conversion Apartment land-use at 202 Carlise Street by Goony 45, LLC. 
 
Matthew Teeter provided John Butterfield the legal notice, and Butterfield read the notice into the record. 
Upon completion of the legal notice being read, Matthew Teeter provided exhibits 1, 2, and 3, providing the 
proof of publication of the legal notice, notice to the applicant of the public hearing, and the physical 

  

 

 
 

 

5



 

 

positing provided on the 202 Carlise Street property. Chair Goodacre then asked Solicitor Teeter to 
address the procedures of the Board and conduct of the hearing, which was then provided to the Board 
and public. Discussion with Matthew Teeter and Michael Birkner regarding the property owner and legal 
representative was had following the board procedure information and was affirmed by Gary Shaffer, the 
representative present for Goony 45, LLC. Following discussion Gary Shaffer and John Whitmore were 
directed to be sworn in as witnesses. 
 
Gary Shaffer provided the project overview and historic use of the property. The structure had previously 
been used in a multitude of non-traditional housing land-uses, with the most recent being a rental housing 
use with multiple tenants. As a result of a fire casualty, the structure is being planned to be renovated into 
a multi-family dwelling or two-family dwelling specifically catering to the Gettysburg College student 
population. A special exception to allow for the apartment conversion would be required as would 
variance from the minimum five-foot side yard setback requirements and variance from provisions to 
require the exterior fire stairway to be covered/ under roof.  
 
Michael Birker asked the applicant’s representative about the potential for a multi-family dwelling as 
opposed to a two-family dwelling. Gary Shaffer indicated that the costs associated with a multi-family 
dwelling and the need to provide fire protection may preclude the structure being converted into more 
than two housing units. The overall intent will be for twelve bedrooms in the structure. Additional 
questions regarding on-site parking and the nature of the land-use change given enrollment changes at 
Gettysburg College were also discussed. Rodger Goodacre asked about the fire stairway and why it would 
not be under roof, with Gary Shaffer indicating the historic nature of the structure, the functional need for 
the stairway, and the changes that would be necessary for roofing. John Butterfield asked about the rear 
accessory building on-site and if the building would be razed, which Gary Shaffer indicated that the 
accessory building would be redeveloped into a single-family dwelling unit. 
 
John Butterfield asked John Whitmore about the Planning Commission recommendation and the lack of 
any recommendation regarding the variance associated with the exterior stairway roof. John Whitmore 
indicated that the Planning Commission was directed to provide either a positive or negative 
recommendation, but that the Planning Commission felt best to not provide any recommendation. Darren 
Glass asked about the need for the roof with John Whitmore providing information related to building and 
fire code as one area that would potentially encourage the design of the stairwell as well as aesthetic 
concerns. Gary Shaffer provided historic context on the development of the zoning ordinance. 
 
Matthew Teeter asked Gary Shaffer if a new apartment would be constructure with an exterior stairway, to 
which Gary Shaffer provided design justification information as it relates to architectural standards and 
development economics. Additional discussion with staff regarding student housing was provided. 
 
The Zoning Hearing Board then entered executive session at 8:11 p.m. and resumed the public hearing at 
8:31 p.m. Chair Goodacre asked for a motion, with Darren Glass recommending approval of the special 

6



 

 

exception to allow the land-use on site and approval of the variances required for the development. 
Darlene Brown seconded. The motion passed unanimously.  
 
Adjournment: 
 
After discussion with Gary Shaffer, Chair Goodacre asked for a motion to adjourn the public hearing, with 
Darren Glass making a motion to adjourn, seconded by Darlene Brown. The motion passed unanimously 
and the meeting was adjourned at 8:34 p.m.   

7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



 

1 
 

  

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

To: Gettysburg Borough Zoning Hearing Board 
 
From:  Peter Griffioen, Assistant Zoning Officer & Code Compliance Officer 
 John Whitmore, AICP, Zoning Officer and Director of Planning, Zoning, and Code Compliance 
 
CC:  Matthew E. Teeter, Solicitor 
   
Date: February 8, 2024 
 
RE: ZHB-230006 
 533 Steinwehr Avenue, Gettysburg, PA 17325 
 Special Exception Application 
 

The following memorandum provides background information regarding a request for Special Exception from 
the owner of the above-referenced property.   

 

PROJECT INFORMATION 

Name of Project:  Gettysgolf 

Type of Project: Special Exception per Section 27-903 

Project Address: 533 Steinwehr Avenue 

Case Number: ZHB-230006 

Zoning: (TC) Tourist Commercial District 
(HD) Historic District 

 (SEO) Streetscape Enhancement Overlay 
     
Property Owner(s): Gettysburg Nature Alliance 
 297 Steinwehr Avenue 
 Gettysburg, PA 17325 
     
Applicant: Gettysgolf LLC 
 380 Steinwehr Avenue 
 Gettysburg, PA 17325 
 
Applicant’s Attorney: John Murphy, Esquire 
 28 West Middle Street 
 Gettysburg, PA 17325 
 
Submission Date:  A complete application was submitted to the Zoning Officer on December 29, 2023. 
 

37



ZHB-230005  -  202 CARLISLE STREET, GETTYSBURG, PA 17325 
February 8, 2024 

 

2 
 

 

 

MPC Timeline:  

• The applicant was notified of the February 13th hearing date via First Class Mail by the ZHB Solicitor. 

• The hearing was advertised in the Gettysburg Times in accordance with the Pennsylvania Sunshine 
Law and Municipal Planning Code. 

• The adjacent property owners were notified of the hearing via letter mailed first class sent on 
January 25, 2024. 

• The property was clearly posted with signs on January 25, 2024 by the Zoning Officer. 

 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 

1. PROPOSED ACTION 
§ 27-903 Uses Permitted by Special Exception. 
The applicant seeks a Special Exception for the following land use: 

(B) Outdoor commercial recreation or entertainment activity. 
 

2. SITE HISTORY 
Gettysgolf LLC a Pennsylvania Domestic Limited Liability Company entered into a purchase agreement 

for 533 Steinwehr Avenue, Gettysburg, PA 17325 in December of 2023. The Property is approximately 

40,946 sq. ft. in area and is located within the TC (Tourist Commercial), the H (Historic), and the SE 

(Streetscape Enhancement Overlay) Districts.    

  

Prior Use(s): 

Our records dating back to 1998 indicate that this property had at one time been the site of a Hardee’s 

Restaurant with drive through, which was razed in 2016. The site has remained vacant since that 

demolition.  

 

Recent Permitting and License History: 

06/24/2016 16-60 Historic District Work Permit for demolition of existing building, paving and 

curbing. 

07/14/2016 COA-16-39 Demolition similar to permit 16-60 with an installation of split rail fence. 

 

Prior Zoning Hearing Board Decision(s): None identified. 

 

3. RELEVANT ZONING SECTIONS 
a) DEFINITIONS 

COMMERCIAL OUTDOOR RECREATION A use that: 

A. Is used principally for active or passive recreation (such as a driving range).  

B. Is used for a profit-making purpose. 

 

38



ZHB-230005  -  202 CARLISLE STREET, GETTYSBURG, PA 17325 
February 8, 2024 

3 

RECREATION, COMMERCIAL Leisure-time uses that are principally operated for commercial 
purposes. 

SPECIAL EXCEPTION A use for which the Zoning Hearing Board may grant permission following a 
public hearing & findings of fact consistent with this chapter, provided that the use complies with 
the conditions & standards required by this chapter. 

b) PART 9 TOURIST COMMERCIAL DISTRICT (TC)
§ 27-901 Purpose. The purpose of this Part is to provide for and encourage the location of retail
business establishments serving the tourist and visitor trade.

§ 27-902 Uses Permitted by Right

The “commercial outdoor recreation” land use is not included in the uses permitted by right in the 
TC District.  

§ 27-903 Uses Permitted by Special Exception.
The “commercial outdoor recreation” land use is permitted by Special Exception in the TC District 

c) PART 17 ZONING HEARING BOARD
1. § 27-1704  Standards for Zoning Hearing Board Action. In any instance where the Zoning

Hearing Board is required to consider a special exception or variance in accordance with the
provisions of this Part, the applicant shall provide evidence to allow the Board to, among
other things, consider the following standards. The Board shall hear requests for variances
where it is alleged that the provisions of this chapter inflict unnecessary hardship upon the
applicant. The Board may, by rule, prescribe the form of application & may require
preliminary application to the Zoning Officer. The Board may grant a variance, provided that
all of the following findings are made where relevant in a given case:

B. For Special Exceptions:
(1) The applicant shall provide evidence to indicate to the Zoning Hearing Board that:

(a) The proposed use is consistent with the purpose of the Part whereby it is
permitted and the overall purposes contained in Part 1.
(b) The proposed use and its location are generally consistent with the Comprehensive
Plan and the current Gettysburg Borough Zoning Map.
(c) The proposed use complies with the lot requirements and the building height of
the district where it is proposed.
(d) The proposed use is consistent with the general and supplemental regulations set
forth in Part 15, and the design standards of Part 19.
(e) The proposed use will not substantially injure or detract from the use of
neighboring property or from the character of the neighborhood and that the use of
the adjacent property is adequately safeguarded. Further, the proposed use, located
on the proposed property, with the present and proposed characteristics of each, and
considering the present and proposed characteristics of the neighboring properties,
will not cause negative impacts over and above those typically associated with such
uses located and operated in a usual manner.
(f) The proposed use will provide a fence or a planting screen and/or additional yard or
open space area to reduce the effect of the proposed use upon adjacent properties.

39

https://ecode360.com/27359910#27359916


ZHB-230005  -  202 CARLISLE STREET, GETTYSBURG, PA 17325 
February 8, 2024 

 

4 
 

(g) The proposed use will promote preservation or adaptive reuse of the sites and 
structures identified by the Local Historic District Regulations [Chapter 11].  
(h) The proposed use complies with the required off-street parking and loading 
regulations in Part 13.  
(i) The proposed use will provide safe and adequate access to streets and that the 
applicant will make any improvements needed to guarantee compatibility with 
adjacent streets as recommended by the Borough Engineer.  
(j) The proposed use will provide for pedestrian access to the site.  
(k) The proposed use will not adversely affect public facilities and utilities, such as 
water, sewer, police and fire protection, schools, etc.  
(l) The proposed use will comply with the signage regulations of Chapter 19 of the 
Borough Code. 

(2) The Zoning Hearing Board may attach reasonable conditions as it deems necessary to 
assure compliance with this chapter. 

 
 

40



 

 

MEMO 

To: Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Hearing Board 

From: John Whitmore, Director of Planning, Zoning and Code Enforcement 

Date: January 29, 2024 

Re: Planning Commission Review                                                                                                   
ZHB-230006 Gettygolf, LLC; 533 Steinwehr Avenue                                                                                   
Application for a special exception pursuant to Section 27-903. B for an 
Outdoor Commercial Recreation or Entertainment Activity land use. 

 
 
At its meeting on Tuesday, January 16, 2024 the Borough of Gettysburg Planning Commission 

reviewed the above-mentioned application to make recommendations, pursuant to Section 27-

1703 of the Borough Code of Ordinances which states, “All requests for variances and special 

exceptions will first be sent by the Board to the Gettysburg Planning Commission for review and 

recommendation.”  

 

The Planning Commission voted unanimously to recommend approval of the request for special 

exception for an Outdoor Commercial Recreation or Entertainment Activity land use in 

consideration the following: 

• The use would not negatively affect neighboring residents and provides an appropriate 

tourism based commercial land use. 

 

Respectfully Submitted, 

 

 

John Whitmore, AICP 
Zoning Officer 
Director of Planning, Zoning and Code Enforcement 
Borough of Gettysburg 
jwhitmore@gettysburgpa.gov 

  

 

  

 

 

41



February 13, 2024 

Gettysburg Borough Council 
c/o Matthew Moon, President 
59 East High Street 
Gettysburg, PA 17325 

RE: Gettysburg Borough Zoning Hearing Board Annual Report 

Dear Matthew Moon, 

In accordance with paragraph 2.2 of the Bylaws and Rules of Procedure of the 
Gettysburg Borough Zoning Hearing Board (“Board”), this annual report details the 
Board’s status and activities for calendar year 2023. 

The Board met five times to consider three applications and conduct one 
reorganization.  The three applications in total requested two land-use variances, one 
special exception related to building height, and one variance related to building height. 
One application, ZHB-230002 / Gettysburg Station, did involve multiple meetings 
occurring on June 28, 2024, July 12, 2024, and concluding on July 26, 2024. 

As compared to calendar year 2022, the number of applications remained the 
same at three.   

All hearings were conducted in accordance with the Pennsylvania Municipalities 
Planning Code (“MPC”) and the Board’s bylaws.  There were no changes to the Board’s 
bylaws proposed or adopted during the year.   

None of the decisions rendered by the board were appealed to the Adams 
County Court of Common Pleas. 

With respect to personnel, as of this report the Board has five members with one 
vacancy for the alternate position. 

I would be happy to answer any questions you may have. 

Very truly yours, 

Rodger Goodacre, Chair 
Zoning Hearing Board 

42



cc:  Zoning Officer 
Zoning Hearing Board Solicitor 

43


	Binder1
	02132024_ZHB_Agenda
	2023.9.27 DRAFT ZHB Minutes
	DRAFT_01242024-ZHB-Meeting-Minutes
	ZHB-230006, 533 Steinwehr Avenue, Gettysgolf LLC-Zoning Variance, 12.29.2023
	ZHB-230006, 533 Steinwehr Avenue, Maps, 12.29.2023
	ZHB-230006, Gettysgolf Pd Inv#10409, 12.29.2023LLC
	ZHB-230006_Application_ZO-memo-to-ZHB
	ZHB-230006_PC-Review-Memo_01292024

	Zoning Hearing Board 2024 Annual Report



